
     AGENDA
BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

100 State Street, Beloit WI 53511
City Hall Forum – 7:00 p.m.

Monday, November 21, 2016

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS

a. Proclamation recognizing City of Beloit Election Inspectors for 2016 (Stottler)

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS

5. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION

6. CONSENT AGENDA

All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate
discussion of these items unless a Council member so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the General Order of
Business and considered at this point on the agenda.

a. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular meeting of November 7, 2016 (Stottler)

b. Resolution approving a new application for Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor License of
Game On Bar and Grill, LLC, d/b/a Game on Bar and Grill, located at, 443 East Grand
Avenue, Joseph A Jensen Agent, for the licensing period ending June 30, 2017 (Stottler)
ABLCC recommendation for approval 4-0

c. Resolution approving Change of Agent on the Class “A” Beer and Class ”A” Cider Only
license for Speedway LLC owned by MPC Investment LLC, d/b/a Speedway #4293, 2781
Milwaukee Road to Jane M. Erbe for the licensing period ending June 30, 2017  (Stottler)
ABLCC recommendation for approval 5-0

d. Resolution approving a Six-Lot Final Plat of Subdivision called Eagles Ridge Plat No. 2 for
the properties located at 1710 & 1725 Raven Court (Christensen)
Plan Commission recommendation for approval 6-0

e. Application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow Other Entertainment-Oriented Retail for
the purposes of a banquet hall facility, in a C-2 Neighborhood Commercial District for
property located at 1703 Park Avenue in the City of Beloit (Christensen) Refer to Plan
Commission

f. Application for a Zoning Map Amendment to change the Zoning District Classification of the
properties located at 631, 640, 654 & 657 Bluff Street, from R-1B, Single-Family Residential
District to C-1, Office District (Christensen) Refer to Plan Commission

7. ORDINANCES

8. APPOINTMENTS



9. COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS

10. CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION

11. REPORTS FROM BOARDS AND CITY OFFICERS

a. Resolution authorizing Application and Acceptance of a Community Grant from the Walmart
Foundation for “Shop with a Hero” Program and Amending the 2016 General Fund
Operating Budget (Liggett)

b. Resolution authorizing Application and Acceptance of a Risk Reduction Grant from Cities
and Villages Mutual Insurance Company (CVMIC) and Amending the 2016 General Fund
Operating Budget (Liggett)

c. The City Council may adjourn into closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats. 19.85 (1)(e) to
discuss potential real estate transaction, the discussion of which would harm the City’s
competitive or bargaining interests if held in open session, namely the potential transfer of
Outlot #1 of Walnut Grove Plat No. 2 (2278 Winchester Drive) to the City of Beloit
(Krueger/Christensen)

d. Council may reconvene in open session and possibly take action on the matter discussed in
closed session

12. ADJOURNMENT

** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled
individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service, please contact the City Clerk's
Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

Dated: November 16, 2016
Lorena Rae Stottler
City of Beloit City Clerk
www.beloitwi.gov

You can watch this meeting live on Charter PEG digital channel 992. Meetings are rebroadcast
during the week of the Council meeting on Tuesday at 1:00 p.m.; Thursday at 8:30 a.m.; and

Friday at 1:00 p.m.



WHEREAS, there were four elections in the City of Beloit in 2016 where a total of 26,414 ballots (including

3,772 absentee ballots) were cast by Beloit voters; and

WHEREAS, despite the large number of voters and the ballots that they cast, the Election Officials appointed

to work in the nine Polling Places throughout the City processed voters respectfully, efficiently and without delay;

and

WHEREAS, more than 200 outstanding residents of our community have chosen to take time out of their

demanding lives to contribute to the civil well-being of the voting process in the City of Beloit; and

WHEREAS, Election Officials span the generation gap from high school students to senior citizens and mirror

the amazing diversity of our community while providing a tangible link between the voting public and the election

process; and

WHEREAS, Election Officials understand that voter confidence and trust depends on them and their

interactions with electors and know that they influence the public’s confidence and trust in the transparent

administration of elections in Wisconsin; and

WHEREAS, Election Officials are the backbone of American democracy and their dedicated service allows our

democracy to flourish; and

WHEREAS, the City is extremely fortunate to have residents committed to being trained and willing to work

as Election Officials, especially in recent years where election laws are fluid and change rapidly; and

WHEREAS, it is most appropriate to recognize the contribution that Election Officials make each time we cast

our votes:

NOW, THEREFORE, LET IT BE IT PROCLAIMED, that the City Council for the City of Beloit hereby officially
recognize the significant efforts associated with the accomplishment of tasks identified above to call on the
individuals who served as Election Officials during a presidential year, and hereby expresses their sincere gratitude on
behalf of the City of Beloit Staff and Residents for the outstanding service provided by all parties involved with the
multiple elections held in 2016. Thank You!

Dated this 21st day of November 2016.

________________________________

David F. Luebke, President

Beloit City Council

ATTEST:

Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



PROCEEDINGS OF THE BELOIT CITY COUNCIL
100 State Street, Beloit WI 53511
City Hall Forum – 7:00 p.m.
Monday, November 7, 2016

Presiding: David F. Luebke
Present: Sheila De Forest, Regina Dunkin, Regina Hendrix, Kevin Leavy, Mark Preuschl, Marilyn

Sloniker
Absent: None

1. President Luebke called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. in the Forum at Beloit City Hall.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS - None

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS - None

5. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION

a. Francesca Gleichsner, 907 4
th

Street, addressed the council with interest on the property located at
1115 Summit Avenue. The City purchased 1115 Summit Avenue at the tax foreclosure sale this year
with the intention of demolishing the property. She (with the help of her father) have expressed
interest in purchasing the property to rehab it as a rental property. She owns the property next door
and would like the opportunity to purchase the home and restore it as a rental property in order to
place the property back on the tax roll. President Luebke instructed staff to contact Ms. Gleichsner
and Councilor Leavy asked that the council be updated with the result of that contact.

b. Darrell Adams, 1431 Bittel Street, addressed the council with concerns about excessive standing
water in his backyard that is a result of what he feels is from the excessive building on Division Street
adjacent to his property. Because they raised the grade at the storage facility, his yard has become
the swell for this area and he now has trees leaning and falling, moisture with mold in his basement
and concerns for permanent damage. He said he has worked with the City engineers and Planning
personnel and that resulted in contact that the City would not be taking action at this time. Another
building is going up behind the tire shop and the situation is getting worse with standing water and
increases in mosquitos to the point it’s nearly unbearable. He is asking the council to assist him with
a solution to this problem that is now on his property. President Luebke instructed staff to contact Mr.
Adams and Councilor Leavy asked that the council be updated with the result of that contact.

6. CONSENT AGENDA

Councilors Preuschl and Sloniker made a motion to adopt consent as presented. Motion carried.

a. The Minutes of the Regular and Special meetings of October 17, 2016 were approved.
b. A resolution authorizing Final Payment of Public Works Contract C16-02, Concrete Pavements-

Kettle, Cranston, & Gateway was approved. File 8714
c. An application for a new application for Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor License of Game On Bar

and Grill, LLC, d/b/a Game on Bar and Grill, located at, 443 East Grand Avenue, Joseph A Jensen
Agent, for the licensing period ending June 30, 2017 was referred to ABLCC. File 8721

d. An application for Final Subdivision Plat of Eagles Ridge Plat No. 2 for properties located at 1710 &
1725 Raven Court was referred to Plan Commission. File 8073

e. A resolution approving a Transit Services Agreement between the City of Beloit and Industries for
the Blind, Inc. was approved. File 8733

7. ORDINANCES

a. Public Works Director Greg Boysen presented a proposed Ordinance to establish 2-Hour Parking
Time Limit in Iron Works South Parking Lot.



 The City of Beloit received the request from Andrew Janke, Economic Development Director on
behalf of Hendricks Commercial Properties.

 The Traffic Review Committee reviewed the issue during the October 3, 2016 special meeting
and the Committee voted (5-0) in favor of establishing a 2-hour time limit for 48 stalls located
within the Iron Works South Parking Lot. New developments are continuing to locate within
Hendricks Commercial Properties facility located along Third Street, including the YMCA.

 The YMCA plans to move into the space along Third Street in the first part of 2017.
 The 2-hour parking time limits are intended to accommodate the ‘customers’ for businesses in

the area, including the members of the YMCA.
 The DBA contacted adjacent property owners and gave an update at the TRC meeting that all

responses were in favor of the change to 2-hours
This is second reading. Councilors Leavy and Dunkin made a motion to adopt the ordinance as
presented. Motion carried. File 7791 Ordinance 3583

b. Public Works Director Greg Boysen presented a proposed Ordinance to Add Signal Locations to
Index of Special Locations at Gateway/Cranston and Gateway/Colley. The City of Beloit recently
completed the signal upgrade at Cranston/Gateway and is in the process of constructing the signals
at Colley/Gateway.
 The Traffic Review Committee reviewed the issue during the July 25, 2016 meeting and the

Committee voted (4-0) in favor adding both locations to the Index of Special Locations.
 Pratt Industries was recently constructed at the intersection of Cranston Road and Gateway

Boulevard.
 A new entrance, turn lanes and signal upgrades were completed by the City of Beloit in

conjunction with the Pratt project.
 In addition to the upgrades at the intersection of Cranston Road/Gateway Boulevard, the City of

Beloit is currently in the process of reconstructing a portion of Colley Road to an urban section.
Signals will be installed at the intersection of Colley Road and Gateway Boulevard.

 All future truck deliveries to Pratt are scheduled to use the southern entrance/exit to the site
which is located along Colley Road.

This is second reading. Councilors Preuschl and De Forest made a motion to adopt the ordinance as
presented. Motion carried. File 7914 Ordinance 3584

c. Public Works Director Greg Boysen presented a proposed Ordinance to Remove Parking on the
North Side of West Grand Avenue Adjacent to 715 West Grand Avenue. The City of Beloit recently
razed the building located at 715 West Grand Avenue.
 The Traffic Review Committee reviewed the issue during the July 25, 2016 meeting and the

Committee voted (4-0) in favor of removing the parking on the north side of West Grand Avenue
adjacent to 715 W. Grand.

 After the demolition of the building, City crews removed existing driveways, repaired/replaced
curb and sidewalk.

 The property is located at a skewed intersection which has unique sightlines for vehicles
approaching the 8

th
Street/Brooks Street/W. Grand intersection.

 The previous driveway locations and proximity to the intersection restricted vehicle parking in the
past.

 After evaluating the new layout, it was determined that parking should be officially removed to
allow for better sightlines at the intersection

This is second reading. Councilors Preuschl and Dunkin made a motion to adopt the ordinance as
presented. Motion carried. File 7791 Ordinance 3585

d. Public Works Director Greg Boysen presented a Substitute Amendment #1: Proposed Ordinance to
Remove Parking on the South Side of Public Avenue Adjacent to 424 College Street. The City of
Beloit received a request from Meals on Wheels to remove parking along Public Avenue in the area
of their pick-up/drop-off.
 The Traffic Review Committee reviewed the issue during the July 25, 2016 meeting and the

Committee voted (4-0) in favor of removing the parking on the south side of Public Avenue
adjacent to 424 College Street.

 Meals on Wheels is located on the corner of Public and College. Currently, the volunteer drivers
use the Public Avenue door to pick-up/drop-off meals.

 Since 1971, Beloit Meals on Wheels has been serving the Greater Beloit community residents
who find themselves in need of therapeutic diets or seven-day-a-week service.

 Normal pick-up occurs around 11 AM and normal drop-off occurs after noon.



 After talking with Ellen Wiegand, Executive Director of Beloit Meals on Wheels, it was decided
that the best option would be to create a No-Parking/Loading zone between the hours of 10:00
AM and 1:00 PM

This is second reading. Councilors Hendrix and Preuschl made a motion to adopt the ordinance as
presented. Motion carried. File 7791 Ordinance 3586

e. Public Works Director Greg Boysen presented a proposed Ordinance to Establish Time Restrictions
for Terrace Parking at 819 Clary Street. The City of Beloit received the request from Shelley Cousin,
Board member of Little Turtles’ Playhouse, Inc.
 The Traffic Review Committee reviewed the issue during the October 3, 2016 special meeting

and the Committee voted (5-0) in favor of establishing a 30-minute time limit on weekdays
between 6 AM-6PM.

 The property at 819 Clary Street was recently renovated to allow for a child care center which is
able to serve up to 48 children between the ages of 0-6 years.

 The terrace parking stalls would be limited to 30-minutes on weekday between the hours of 6
AM-6 PM to allow pick-up/drop-off activities to occur.

 Alternate overnight parking would be in effect for this area due to the limited time frame for the
30 minute parking.

 Construction in the right-of-way is not needed, as the terrace parking area already exists.
This is second reading. Councilors De Forest and Preuschl made a motion to adopt the ordinance as
presented. Motion carried. File 7791 Ordinance 3587

f. Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented a proposed Ordinance amending
the Future Land Use Map of the City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan to change the future land use
designation for the property located at 631, 640, 654, & 657 Bluff Street from R-1B, Single-Family
Residential to C-1, Office District.
 Planning staff is proposing the following amendment to the Future Land Use Map (Map 10) of

the City’s Comprehensive Plan:
 631, 640, 654, & 657 Bluff Street – From Single-Family Residential – Urban to Office.
 The subject properties are planned and zoned for Single-Family Residential uses, and have

come to the attention of Planning staff primarily due to the long-term vacancy and deteriorating
conditions at the historic apartment building located at 640 Bluff Street.

 The subject properties are currently zoned R-1B, Single-Family Residential. If the proposed
amendment is approved, the affected properties will be rezoned to C-1, Office District at a future
date.

 The intent of the proposed amendment is to create a planning framework that will allow the
future rehab and occupancy of the historic, vacant apartment building at 640 Bluff Street as a
conditional use in an office district. Since this 11-unit apartment building has been vacant for
more than a year, it has technically lost its nonconforming status and must conform to the single-
family zoning. For obvious reasons, this is both unlikely and unrealistic, and maintaining the
existing R-1B zoning would be a major barrier to the future rehab and re-occupancy of the
historic apartment building at 640 Bluff Street. The building located at 640 Bluff Street is a
contributing structure in the Bluff Street Historic District, constructed around 1907 and notable for
its architecture. It has been vacant since being posted Unfit for Human Habitation in May 2015,
and is in the midst of a foreclosure action with a default judgment entered on July 15, 2016.

 In addition, the proposed amendment will make the other uses (senior center, medical office, &
church) more conforming to the adopted Land Use Map (and Zoning Map), thereby supporting
their continued operation and future expansion.

 The subject properties are located immediately north of the West Grand Avenue corridor, which
is planned and zoned for Office uses. As shown on the attached maps, the proposed
amendment and subsequent rezoning from Single-Family Residential to Office is a logical
northern extension of an existing Office District that will achieve historic preservation and
community development goals. An Office land use classification was selected because it
provides the greatest fit with the existing senior center, medical office, & church while creating a
potential path for buyers of the apartment building at 640 Bluff Street. Multifamily residential uses
are a conditional use in the Office District; therefore future buyers of 640 Bluff Street will need a
Conditional Use Permit before occupancy and will be required to satisfy certain conditions of
approval to address any concerns.

 Planning staff has spoken with the affected stakeholders, including the Director of Grinnell
Senior Center, the Church Pastor, and the Chiropractor at 654 Bluff Street. All three
stakeholders support Planning staff’s proposal and are concerned about the long-term vacancy



and deterioration at 640 Bluff Street.
 The Plan Commission held a public hearing to consider the requested amendment on

September 7, 2016 and voted unanimously (5-0) to adopt the attached Resolution.
This is second reading. Councilors Sloniker and Hendrix made a motion to adopt the ordinance as
presented. Motion carried. File 7940 Ordinance 3588

g. Finance and Administrative Services Director, Eric Miller presented a proposed Ordinance to amend
Section 3.15(3) of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit pertaining to Distribution of
Room Taxes. The City of Beloit imposes a room tax for the furnishing of retail rooms, lodging, or
sites to transients by hotel keepers, motel operators, and other persons furnishing accommodations
that are available to the public. Such tax is at the rate of 8% of the gross receipts from such retail
furnishing of rooms, lodging, or sites. Proceeds from the tax are remitted to the City Treasurer within
30 days of each calendar quarter end.

Currently, the proceeds of such tax when collected is apportioned at 10% to the City for general
administration expenses and the remaining 90% to the Beloit Convention and Visitors Bureau (Visit
Beloit) for use in promoting, developing, stimulating, expanding, and administering activities related
to the convention and tourism business. The 90% of proceeds are remitted to the Bureau on a
quarterly basis after all tax proceeds have been collected, typically within 40 days of each calendar
quarter end.

The apportioned amounts have been the same since inception of the ordinance in 1987.
Beginning with the first quarter in 2017 the City would like to increase the amount apportioned to the
City from 10% to 15% and reduce the amount apportioned to the Beloit Convention and Visitors
Bureau from 90% to 85%. Based on the amount of growth in the taxes collected over the last
several years as well as a conservative growth projection going forward, the reduction in
apportionment will not have a significant impact on the revenues of the Bureau. In fact, they are
projected to remain the same based on current collections and future growth projections. However,
the increase in apportionment to the City will have a significant impact of the general fund revenues
by approximately $50,000. This helped balance the 2017 general fund budget.

Staff is asking for approval and seeking to suspend the rules to have the required first and
second reading tonight so it can be adopted with the 2017 budget. Councilors Preuschl and Sloniker
made a motion to suspend the rules for a first and second reading. Motion carried. Councilors De
Forest and Hendrix made a motion to adopt the ordinance as presented. Motion carried. File 6524
Ordinance 3589

8. APPOINTMENTS - None

9. COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS

 Councilor De Forest thanked several people who donated their time to assist with preparing the more
than 1,000 lights that will soon be hung downtown. She thanked Alex Morganroth for his service to
the City of Beloit and wished him well on his new adventure. She attended the Turtle Creek
confluence groundbreaking and is encouraged by the great work being done in this area. She
extended her condolences to the family of Dave Schreiber who will be remembered for his dedication
and commitment to our waterways.

 Councilor Sloniker attended the final Farmers Market and enjoyed seeing all the children in costume.
She attended the NAACP banquet and felt it was a nice event with good speakers. She is looking
forward to attending the YWCA racial justice conference on Thursday. She thanked and
congratulated Fire Chief Liggett for the positive press in helping a Rockford resident last week. She
also wished Alex Morganroth good luck and thanked him for his service.

 Councilor Dunkin congratulated the Beloit Historical Society Hall of Fame inductees: Dr. J. B. Elzy,
Roger Bryden, Frank Marsden, Sally Kramer and Fran Fruzen. She mentioned that the Merrill
Community Center closed on November 1 and thanked everyone for their support during the 27
years it was open. She encouraged voters to get out and vote tomorrow.

 Councilor Preuschl is pleased with the confluence project and looks forward to what’s on the horizon.
There are two new businesses in downtown Beloit: Sheek and Unique and Fresco Fajita. He
encouraged people to check them out. He had the opportunity to photograph the demolition of the
historic candy cane smokestacks on October 27

th
. He also noted many photographers who have

been busy at Beckman Mill and Big Hill Park.
 Councilor Leavy thanked the City Clerk’s office for their work in preparing for Tuesday’s election. He

has received some citizen concerns and was pleased that they were resolved timely and thoroughly.
He encouraged all citizens to make their concerns known to the Clerk before they post in on social
media so she can investigate. He reminded voters that people working tomorrow are fellow citizen



volunteers so voters should be patient, respectful and kind. Complaints should be directed to the
Chief Inspector at each polling place.

 Councilor Hendrix attended the NAACP banquet and was pleased that three of the presenters were
her former “help yourself” students. She was honored to work with fellow leaders on a Government
and Politics Career panel. The students were engaged and asked excellent questions!

 President Luebke also attended the NAACP banquet and enjoyed the evening. Also, last week he
and the City Manager attended the opening of the first Diverging Diamond interchange just off of
Read Road near I-90. There are 70 in the country but the first one in Wisconsin. He also thanked the
Clerk’s Office for their hard work in the upcoming election. He thanked Regina Dunkin for her 27
years of service and leadership at Merrill Community Center.

10. CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION - None

11. REPORTS FROM BOARDS AND CITY OFFICERS

a. Public Works Director Greg Boysen presented a resolution approving “WISCORS” Cooperative
Agreement between the State of Wisconsin Department of Transportation and the City of Beloit. This
agreement will authorize the public works staff to accommodate a WisDOT WISconsin Continuously
Operating Reference Station (WISCORS) facility at the Wastewater Treatment Facility. WisDOT is
developing a WISconsin Continuously Operating Reference Station (WISCORS) network throughout
the State of Wisconsin to provide information needed to increase the accuracy of field collected
Global Positioning System (GPS) survey and Geographic Information System (GIS) grade data. The
WISCORS network is a system of GPS receivers permanently fixed at sites located in cities,
counties, or villages throughout Wisconsin that provide positions on points of interest in real time
instantaneously. As a result of meetings and discussions with Public Works and Water Resources
Division staff, it has been determined that the WisDOT proposed installation can be accommodated
at the Wastewater Treatment Facility without difficulty. The city’s participation in this program will be
mutually beneficial to the city and the state.

Councilors De Forest and Sloniker made a motion to adopt the resolution as presented. Motion
carried. File 8734

b. Public Works Director Greg Boysen presented a resolution approving a Parking Lot Use agreement
between the City of Beloit and United Church of Beloit. This agreement will authorize Approval of a
Parking Lot Use Agreement between the City of Beloit and United Church of Beloit for parking space
near Grinnell Hall. Pursuant to a review by the United Church of Beloit of the established practice of
Grinnell Hall patrons parking in their adjacent parking lot, the church has proposed to formalize the
continued use of the parking lot through the establishment of a parking lot use agreement. The
initially proposed agreement has been reviewed and a mutually accepted final form of the agreement
has been established. The parking lot use agreement extends until April 14, 2019. The agreement
provides for the city to pay $1850.00 for parking lot use in 2016 and $2600.00 annually thereafter
during the remaining period of the agreement. Councilors Dunkin and Leavy made a motion to adopt
the resolution as presented. Motion carried. File 8735

c. Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented a resolution authorizing the City
Manager to Apply for a Wisconsin Historic Preservation Fund Subgrant. The protection and
enhancement of historic landmarks, landmark sites, and historic districts helps represent and reflect
distinctive and important elements of the City’s architectural, archeological, cultural, social economic,
ethnic, and political history. Beloit has an exceptional collection of historic properties with over 300
locally-landmarked structures and three distinct historic districts.

In 2015 the City received a Wisconsin Historical Society grant and hired Legacy Architecture to
conduct an Intensive Survey of Historic Properties in Beloit. The purpose of the intensive survey was
to identify individual properties or clusters of properties (districts) eligible for listing on the National
Register of Historic Places (NRHP). Placement on the NRHP is strictly honorary and does not place
any type of restrictions on the listed property. Benefits of being listed on the NRHP include gaining
access to certain state and federal historic preservation tax credits, as well as providing a sense of
pride to owners of a historically significant and unique property.

The Intensive Survey identifies a cluster of 159 properties on the east side of Beloit, informally
designated as the Milwaukee Road and Emerson Street historic district, as eligible for nomination to
the National Register of Historic Places due to their architectural significance. The City of Beloit
would like to nominate this residential district to the NRHP in order to advance historic preservation
efforts in the community and to allow residents to apply for a state tax credit accessible only to
owners of properties on the NRHP.



The City of Beloit is seeking permission to apply for a Wisconsin Historic Preservation Fund
Subgrant. Applications are due by November 11, 2016. Awards are announced in February/March
2017. Nominations of historic properties generally take between 12 and 15 months and the entire
process would likely not conclude until early 2018. If the City Council approves the request, all
property owners in the potential historic district will be invited to a public outreach meeting in
November or December of 2016 in order to find out more about the nomination process as well as
the benefits of owing a property on the National Register of Historic Places. The grant will be used to
pay for a consultant to complete all necessary research, documentation, and application for the
nomination of the potential Milwaukee Road and Emerson Street District. Approximately $16,000 in
funds is being requested through this grant. No local match is required. Councilors Sloniker and
Dunkin made a motion to adopt the resolution as presented. Motion carried. File 5860

d. City Manager Lori S. Curtis Luther presented a resolution adopting the City of Beloit Strategic Plan
for 2016-2018. Because the framework for the City of Beloit’s Strategic Plan has been in place prior
to many of the Councilors holding office and prior to my appointment, we had a unique opportunity to
reevaluate the City’s vision, mission, values and goal areas. There was strong consensus on the
attached proposed values, mission and goals with varying opinions on the vision statement.

This year the full Council and Department Heads and other staff were engaged in a process to
refresh our strategic plan and create a new framework. In addition to the information provided at
previous workshops, staff and I have begun adding detail to the framework in the form of strategic
initiatives and performance indicators. My intent is to continue updating the plan with staff and
reporting out to the City Council on a quarterly basis.

Councilors Leavy and Preuschl made a motion to adopt the resolution as presented. Motion
carried. File 8649

e. Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented a resolution approving the 2017
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Annual Action Plan. Councilors Dunkin and De Forest
recused themselves from this item and left the Forum. The Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) requires each CDBG Formula Grantee to submit a Consolidated Plan every five
years, and Annual Action Plan each year. Both Plans include specific objectives for housing,
homelessness, public housing and community development and includes information on the CDBG
process, affordable housing, and special needs populations. The City’s Consolidated Plan was
approved last year.

The Annual Plan includes how the City intends to allocate its CDBG funds in over the next year.
The process for preparing the CDBG budget includes the following steps: applications are available
to agencies interested in applying for the CDBG funds; each applicant is required to present its
application to the Community Development Authority (CDA); the CDA makes its recommendation to
the City Council on how the CDBG funds should be allocated; a public hearing is held by the City
Council; and adoption of the CDBG budget.

On July 18, 2016, the City Council established the following local funding priorities: Public
Service Programs which focus on comprehensive case management strategies, with priority given to
neighborhood stabilization activities, education in budgeting and life skills, and employment training
that corresponds with local employment opportunities; Code Enforcement; Housing Rehabilitation;
and Economic Development activities with priority given to technical job training; Program
Administration and Fair Housing.

All recommended projects are consistent with the proposed 2015-2019 Consolidated Plan and
2017 Annual Action Plan. All projects will be incorporated into the 2017 Annual Action Plan which is
submitted to HUD. All recommended projects are eligible CDBG activities and meet one of the three
national objectives. Councilors Leavy and Hendrix made a motion to adopt the resolution as
presented. Motion carried. Councilors Dunkin and De Forest returned to the Forum. File 8725

f. Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented a resolution approving the 2017
HOME Investment Partnership (HOME) Budget. Last year, the City of Beloit, Rock County and the
cities in Rock County entered into a new Rock County HOME Consortium agreement. This
agreement allows us to receive HOME funds directly from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) similar to CDBG. We are required to hold a public hearing to seek community
input on the proposed use(s) of the HOME funds awarded to the City.

For 2017, we are estimating that the Consortium will receive $475,000. Based on that budget,
the City of Beloit’s share would be $133,000. We are also estimating receiving $100,000 in HOME
Program Income from repayment of loans. The City is also allocated $14,725 in HOME
Administration funds which can be used to pay for staff time related to the program. It is likely that



we will have additional program income dollars in 2017 if houses currently under rehab are
completed and sold, but at this point, we are being conservative on our Program Income estimate.

On September 28, 2016, the Community Development Authority (CDA) recommended that the
City’s dollars be used to fund the City’s Housing Rehabilitation Revolving Loan Fund for owner-
occupied properties on a city-wide basis and/or New Construction projects in the Westside Target
Area.

On October 17, 2016, a Public Hearing was held on the proposed HOME Budget during the City
Council meeting, and no comments were made by the public. Councilors De Forest and Sloniker
made a motion to adopt the resolution as presented. Motion carried. File 8663

g. Downtown Beloit Association Director Shauna El-Amin presented a resolution approving the 2017
Business Improvement District Operating Plan and Budget. In 1987, the Downtown Beloit
Association (DBA) was formed. The annual report was presented to the City Council. In 1988, the
Business Improvement District (BID) was formed along with designating Downtown Beloit as a Main
Street Community. The BID is an essential source of income for the DBA. The BID Assessment
rate will remain the same at $3.88/1000, where it has been since 2007. The BID boundaries will be
increased to include parcel 1354-0080 known as Riverbend. The estimated BID Assessment to be
received in 2016 is $112,426.24. On October 27, 2016 the Downtown Beloit Association Board of
Directors approved the Budget for 2017. Councilors De Forest and Dunkin made a motion to adopt
the resolution as presented. Motion carried. File 8479

h. Finance and Administrative Services Director, Eric Miller, presented resolution approving the
Operating Budgets, Appropriating Funds, and Levying Property Taxes necessary for the Operation
and Administration of the City of Beloit for the Year 2017 including the 2017 Capital Improvement
Budget, the Beloit Public Library Budget; and further authorizing the City Treasurer to spread the City
Property Tax along with the apportionments certified for other Jurisdictions upon the current tax roll
of the City. . Mr. Miller explained that this is the final step of the 2016 budget process is the result of
months of planning and meetings, including a full day workshop and public hearing.

City Manager Lori Luther wanted to publicly thank the department directors, division heads,
finance staff and all employees for the significant work put into this document and she is proud to be
a part of this team. She noted that while the days of status quo budgeting are long gone, having a
room full of people dedicated to solutions has made all the difference. She gave special thanks to
Eric Miller for his leadership and experience in the budget process and knows he sometimes doesn’t
get the credit he deserves in presenting the data and predicting the undpredictable. Councilors
Leavy and Hendrix made a motion to approve the proposed budget as presented. Motion carried.
File 8731

12. Councilors Hendrix and Preuschl and made a motion to adjourn at 8:32 p.m. Motion Carried.

______________________________
Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk

www.beloitwi.gov
Date approved by City Council: November 21, 2016



RESOLUTION APPROVING A CLASS “B” BEER
AND “CLASS B” LIQUOR LICENSE FOR

GAME ON BAR AND GRILL, LLC

WHEREAS, an application has been received for a Class “B” Beer and “Class B”
Liquor License from Game on Bar and Grill, LLC, d/b/a Game on Bar and Grill, Joseph
Jensen, Agent for the property located at 443 E. Grand Avenue, Beloit, Wisconsin; and

WHEREAS, the Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee recommended
approval of this Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor License for the remainder of the
2016-2017 license year.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Beloit
does hereby approve a Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor License for Game on Bar
and Grill, LLC, d/b/a Game on Bar and Grill, Joseph Jensen, Agent, for the property
located at 443 E. Grand Avenue, Beloit, Wisconsin.

Dated this 21st day of November 2016.

_______________________________
David F. Luebke, City Council President

ATTEST:

__________________________________
Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Application for a Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor License for Game On Bar and Grill LLC,
443 E. Grand Ave, Joseph A. Jensen (Agent) for the license period ending June 30, 2017.

Date: November 21, 2016
Presenter(s): Lorena Rae Stottler Department: City Clerk

Overview/Background Information:
Joseph A. Jensen is making application to establish his business to be located at 443 E Grand Ave to be
known as Game On Bar and Grill and is applying for a Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor License for
the license period ending June 30, 2017. This applicant previous applied as J&P Sports House Pub, LLC
and has withdrawn that application.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
1. Game On Bar and Grill, located at 302 State Street (old location of The Local), in the City of

Beloit is requesting to establish a business with a Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor License for
the license period ending June 30, 2017.

2. A complete application with fees has been submitted to the Clerk’s office and was referred to the
ABLCC for their November 8

th
agenda by the City Council on November 21, 2016 via the consent

agenda.
3. Captain Risse certified that he checked municipal and state criminal records and to the best of his

knowledge, with the available information, the character, record and reputation are satisfactory
and therefore, has no objection to the agent appointment.

4. Attorney Krueger asked Mr. Jensen to reaffirm his answer to question #9 on his supplemental
questionnaire for agents which asks if he understands that he can be personally given citations
by the Police Department for such things as underage sales, open after hours or other related
violations, even when he is not on the premises. Mr. Jensen reaffirmed that he understood this
responsibility.

5. The ABLCC reviewed this application at their November 8
th

meeting and is recommending
approval on a vote 4-0

6. The City Council will take action on the recommendation of the ABLCC at their November 21,
2016 for regular meeting.

7. Should the council vote in favor of the issuing of this license, the clerk will execute proper
requests for inspections prior to issuing the license.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its
impact on the City’s mission.): Taking action regarding this license conforms to the City’s Strategic
Plan by encouraging economic development in the entrepreneurial community while applying sound,
sustainable practices to promote high quality development.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program
related to how it will impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-
municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate

in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation: Staff recommends that the City Council accept the
recommendation of the ABLCC.
Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: Action on this item does not have a significant impact on the City’s budget.

Attachments: Original Alcohol Beverage Retail License Application, Schedule of Appointment of Agent.























RESOLUTION APPROVING CHANGE OF AGENT ON THE CLASS “A” BEER AND
“CLASS A” LIQUOR CIDER ONLY LICENSE FOR SPEEDWAY LLC OWNED BY

MPC INVESTMENT LLC, D/B/A SPEEDWAY #4293

WHEREAS, the Agent of record for Speedway LLC Owned by MPC Investment
LLC, d/b/a Speedway #4293, located at 2781 Milwaukee Road is Sheryl LaTronico;

WHEREAS, Speedway LLC Owned by MPC Investment LLC, has requested and
the Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee has recommended that the Agent be
changed to Jane M. Erbe for the licensing period ending June 30, 2017.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Beloit
that the Agent for the alcohol beverage license for Speedway LLC Owned by MPC
Investment LLC, d/b/a Speedway #4293, located at 2781 Milwaukee Road, is hereby
changed to Jane M. Erbe.

Dated this 21st day of November 2016.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

___________________________________
David F. Luebke, City Council President

Attest:

__________________________
Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Resolution approving Change of Agent on the Class “A” Beer License for Speedway 4293, located at 2781
Milwaukee Road, Beloit from Sheryl Latronico to Jane M. Erbe.

Date: November 21, 2016

Presenter(s): Lorena Rae Stottler Department: City Clerk

Overview/Background Information:

Speedway #4293, located at 2781 Milwaukee Road, in the City of Beloit has requested that Jane M. Erbe be appointed
the new agent for the license period ending June 30, 2017.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):

1. Speedway 4293, located at 2781 Milwaukee Road, in the City of Beloit, has appointed Jane M. Erbe as Agent via
corporate letter dated October 17, 2016, replacing Sheryl Latronico.

2. A complete application with fees has been submitted to the Clerk’s office October 26
th

and is being placed on the
November 8

th
ABLCC agenda for consideration. The Committee recommends approval 5-0.

3. Captain Risse certified that he checked municipal and state criminal records and to the best of his knowledge,
with the available information, the character, record and reputation are satisfactory and therefore, has no
objection to the agent appointment.

4. Attorney Krueger asked Ms. Erbe to reaffirm her answer to question #9 on her supplemental questionnaire for
agents which asks if she understands that she can be personally given citations by the Police Department for
such things as underage sales, open after hours or other related violations, even when she is not on the
premises. Ms. Erbe reaffirmed that she understood this responsibility.

Conformance to Strategic Plan: N/A

Sustainability:

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
Staff recommends that City Council approve of the Change of Agent.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments:
Resolution, Schedule of Appointment and Auxiliary Questionnaire









6.d FS-2016-03, Final Plat of Eagles Ridge No. 2, Council Report

RESOLUTION
APPROVING A SIX-LOT FINAL PLAT OF SUBDIVISION

CALLED EAGLES RIDGE PLAT NO. 2
FOR THE PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 1710 & 1725 RAVEN COURT

WHEREAS, New Leaf Homes LLC has submitted a six-lot Final Plat of Subdivision called
Eagles Ridge Plat No. 2 for the properties located at 1710 & 1725 Raven Court; and

WHEREAS, the Final Plat, which will create six residential lots, is located within the corporate
limits of the City of Beloit and contains the dedication of land to the City; and

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit Plan Commission has reviewed and recommended approval of
this Final Plat, subject to three conditions outlined below; and

WHEREAS, this Final Plat substantially conforms to the Preliminary Plat, approved by the City
of Beloit Plan Commission on October 5, 2016; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Beloit has reviewed the proposed six-lot Final Plat
of Subdivision called Eagles Ridge Plat No. 2, which pertains to the following described land:

Lot 40 of Eagles Ridge Plat No. 1 and Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map Document No. 2059860 as
recorded in Volume 37 on Pages 394-396 of the Certified Survey Maps of Rock County, located
in the City of Beloit, County of Rock, State of Wisconsin (also known as 1710 & 1725 Raven
Court). Said parcels contain 1.9 acres, more or less.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City Council of the City of Beloit does
hereby conditionally approve the six-lot Final Plat of Subdivision called Eagles Ridge Plat No. 2, subject
to the following conditions:

1. The applicant shall record the Final Plat with the Rock County Register of Deeds within one year
of approval.

2. Fees in lieu of parkland dedication shall be paid prior to issuance of the first Building Permit.
3. The Final Plat shall not be recorded until a Development Agreement is approved by City Council.

Adopted this 21st day of November, 2016.

City Council of the City of Beloit

David F. Luebke, Council President
Attest:

Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



6.d FS-2016-03, Final Plat of Eagles Ridge No. 2, Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Final Subdivision Plat of Eagles Ridge Plat No. 2 for the properties located at 1710 & 1725 Raven Court

Date: November 21, 2016

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
New Leaf Homes LLC has submitted the attached Final Plat of Eagles Ridge Plat No. 2, which includes the City-owned
1.8-acre land located at 1725 Raven Court and the applicant’s previously platted residential lot located at 1710 Raven
Court.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
 The subdivision of land requires approval of a Preliminary Plat, followed by approval of a detailed Final Plat,

which must substantially conform to the layout of the Preliminary Plat. A recorded Final Plat actually creates the
lots, and may include the entire Preliminary Plat area or phases. The Preliminary Plat of Eagles Ridge No. 2 was
approved by the Plan Commission on October 5

th
. The Final Plat includes all of the Preliminary Plat area.

 The applicant has made an accepted offer to purchase the 1.8-acre parcel at 1725 Raven Court from the City,
and that land was recently rezoned to R-1A, Single-Family Residential. The applicant previously acquired 1710
Raven Court (Lot 40), and the proposed plat will widen this lot by approximately 20 feet along Raven Court.

 On the attached Final Plat, the two existing parcels are outlined in green & orange, and the six proposed lots are
outlined in yellow. The attached Location and Zoning Map shows the location of the platted area.

 Including the re-plat of Lot 40, the plat includes six new single-family residential lots with an average lot size of
13,800 square feet, and proposes the completion of Raven Drive as a cul-de-sac to be renamed Raven Court.

 The proposed Raven Court right-of-way will include new utility mains, curb & gutter, and sidewalks. City staff and
the developer are currently negotiating a Development Agreement regarding the proposed infrastructure.

 The proposed cul-de-sac has a width and bulb radius of 60 feet, and will include sidewalks on one side as
required by the Subdivision Ordinance. As shown on the plat, the sidewalks will not be provided in front of Lot 39,
which is a developed residential property that is not a part of this development.

 The proposed plat includes 8-foot utility easements along the rear lines of the new residential lots.
 The Final Plat substantially conforms to the approved Preliminary Plat and the lots meet minimum standards.
 The applicant is not proposing the dedication of any additional parkland, and the Parks, Recreation, &

Conservation Advisory Commission recommended accepting fees in lieu of parkland dedication on October 12
th
.

 The Plan Commission reviewed this item on November 9, 2016 and voted unanimously (6-0) to recommend
approval of this Final Plat, subject to three conditions as shown on the attached Resolution.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the
City’s mission.):

 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – This subdivision will include a sidewalk to the bike/ped path.
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 City Council consideration and action on the proposed Resolution

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: The proposed purchase price for 1725 Raven is $20K, and the land will become taxable.

Attachments: Resolution and Staff Report to the Plan Commission



6.d FS-2016-03, Final Plat of Eagles Ridge No. 2, Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: November 9, 2016 Agenda Item: 4 File Number: FS-2016-03

Applicant: New Leaf Homes LLC Owner: New Leaf Homes & COB Location: 1710 & 1725 Raven Court

Existing Zoning: R-1A, Single-Family Existing Land Use: Vacant Land Platted Area: 2.15 Acres

Request Overview/Background Information:
New Leaf Homes LLC has submitted the attached Final Plat of Eagles Ridge Plat No. 2, which includes the City-owned 1.8-
acre land located at 1725 Raven Court and the applicant’s previously platted residential lot located at 1710 Raven Court.

Key Issues:
 The subdivision of land requires approval of a Preliminary Plat, followed by approval of a detailed Final Plat, which

must substantially conform to the layout of the Preliminary Plat. A recorded Final Plat actually creates the lots, and
may include the entire Preliminary Plat area or phases. The Preliminary Plat of Eagles Ridge No. 2 was approved by
the Plan Commission on October 5

th
. The Final Plat includes all of the Preliminary Plat area.

 The applicant has made an accepted offer to purchase the 1.8-acre parcel at 1725 Raven Court from the City, and
that land was recently rezoned to R-1A, Single-Family Residential. The applicant previously acquired 1710 Raven
Court (Lot 40), and the proposed plat will widen this lot by approximately 20 feet along Raven Court.

 On the attached Final Plat, the two existing parcels are outlined in green & orange, and the six proposed lots are
outlined in yellow. The attached Location and Zoning Map shows the location of the platted area.

 Including the re-plat of Lot 40, the plat includes six new single-family residential lots with an average lot size of
13,800 square feet, and proposes the completion of Raven Drive as a cul-de-sac to be renamed Raven Court.

 The proposed Raven Court right-of-way will include new utility mains, curb & gutter, and sidewalks. City staff and the
developer are currently negotiating a Development Agreement regarding the proposed infrastructure.

 The proposed cul-de-sac has a width and bulb radius of 60 feet, and will include sidewalks on one side as required
by the Subdivision Ordinance. As shown on the plat, the sidewalks will not be provided in front of Lot 39, which is a
developed residential property that is not a part of this development.

 The proposed plat includes 8-foot utility easements along the rear lines of the new residential lots.
 The Review Agents have reviewed the Final Plat and do not have any comments or concerns.
 The Final Plat substantially conforms to the approved Preliminary Plat and the lots meet minimum standards.
 The applicant is not proposing the dedication of any additional parkland, and the Parks, Recreation, & Conservation

Advisory Commission recommended accepting fees in lieu of parkland dedication on October 12
th
.

 According to Section 12.04 of the Subdivision Ordinance, a Final Plat requires review by the Plan Commission prior
to City Council consideration. Following approval, the Final Plat will be submitted to the WI Dept. of Administration.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The Future Land Use Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan recommends Single-Family Residential – Urban uses of the
subject property. The proposed subdivision plat is consistent with this recommendation. Consideration of this request
supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability: N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached Final Plat of Eagles Ridge Plat No. 2 for
the properties located at 1710 & 1725 Raven Court in the City of Beloit, subject to the following conditions:

1. The applicant shall record the Final Plat with the Rock County Register of Deeds within one year of approval.
2. Fees in lieu of parkland dedication shall be paid prior to issuance of the first Building Permit.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: The proposed purchase price for 1725 Raven is $20K, and the land will become taxable.

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Final Plat, Application, and Resolution Approving Preliminary Plat.



6.d FS-2016-03, Final Plat of Eagles Ridge No. 2, Council Report



6.d FS-2016-03, Final Plat of Eagles Ridge No. 2, Council Report



6.d FS-2016-03, Final Plat of Eagles Ridge No. 2, Council Report



6.d FS-2016-03, Final Plat of Eagles Ridge No. 2, Council Report



6.e CU-2016-07, Indoor Entertainment Venue, 1703 Park Avenue, Council Referral

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Conditional Use Permit Application for the property located at 1703 Park Avenue – Council Referral to the Plan
Commission

Date: November 21, 2016

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
Mario Mendoza has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow an indoor entertainment-oriented venue in a
C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for a proposed banquet hall/event space within the building located at 1703 Park
Avenue.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
 The subject building is the former Gearhart’s TV repair business, which includes vacant commercial space and

two dwelling units. The building has 2,720 square feet of floor area.
 If approved, the applicant intends to make the first floor of the subject building available for private parties,

receptions, etc. The applicant does not intend to sell any alcoholic beverages, but may allow his customers to
bring their own beverages.

 A copy of the application and a sketch of the floor layout provided by the applicant are attached to this report.
 The proposed use is classified as “Entertainment-Oriented Retail Sales/Service,” which requires a Conditional

Use Permit to operate in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the
City’s mission.):

 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it
will impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 Referral to the Plan Commission for the November 22, 2016 meeting
 This item will most likely return to the City Council for a public hearing and possible action on December 5, 2016

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Application & Floor Plan



6.e CU-2016-07, Indoor Entertainment Venue, 1703 Park Avenue, Council Referral



6.e CU-2016-07, Indoor Entertainment Venue, 1703 Park Avenue, Council Referral



6.e CU-2016-07, Indoor Entertainment Venue, 1703 Park Avenue, Council Referral



6.f ZMA-2016-04, 631-657 Bluff Street, Council Referral

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Zoning Map Amendment Application for 631, 640, 654, & 657 Bluff Street – Council Referral to the Plan
Commission

Date: November 21, 2016

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
Planning staff has initiated an application for a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification from R-
1B, Single-Family Residential District to C-1, Office District, for the properties located at 631, 640, 654, & 657 Bluff Street.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
 The subject properties are currently zoned for Single-Family Residential uses, and have come to the attention of

Planning staff primarily due to the long-term vacancy and deteriorating conditions at the historic apartment
building located at 640 Bluff Street.

 The City Council recently approved an amendment to the Future Land Use Map (Map 10) of the City’s
Comprehensive Plan to recommend Office uses for the subject properties.

 The intent of the proposed amendment is to create a zoning classification that will allow the future rehab and
occupancy of the historic, vacant apartment building at 640 Bluff Street as a conditional use in an office district.
Since this 11-unit apartment building has been vacant for more than a year, it has technically lost its
nonconforming status and must conform to the single-family zoning. For obvious reasons, this is both unlikely and
unrealistic, and maintaining the existing R-1B zoning would be a major barrier to the future rehab and re-
occupancy of the historic apartment building at 640 Bluff Street. The building located at 640 Bluff Street is a
contributing structure in the Bluff Street Historic District, constructed around 1907 and notable for its architecture.
It has been vacant since being posted Unfit for Human Habitation in May 2015.

 In addition, the proposed amendment will make the other uses (senior center, medical office, & church) more
conforming to the Zoning Map, thereby supporting their continued operation and future expansion.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the
City’s mission.):

 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it
will impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 Referral to the Plan Commission for the November 22, 2016 meeting
 This item will most likely return to the City Council for a public hearing and possible action on December 5, 2016

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Application



6.f ZMA-2016-04, 631-657 Bluff Street, Council Referral



6.f ZMA-2016-04, 631-657 Bluff Street, Council Referral



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING APPLICATION AND
ACCEPTANCE OF A COMMUNITY GRANT FROM THE WALMART FOUNDATION

FOR “SHOP WITH A HERO” PROGRAM AND AMENDING THE
2016 GENERAL FUND OPERATING BUDGET

WHEREAS, the Walmart Foundation offers a community grant program to offer grants to local
organizations to support the needs of communities; and

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit fire department has obtained a grant from the Walmart Foundation
for the purposes of offering the “Shop with a Hero” program; and

WHEREAS, the grant is received just prior to the holiday season in order to provide
opportunities for children in the community to have a positive interaction with local firefighters in a
social setting; and

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit adopted the 2016 Operating Budget on November 2, 2015 which
included the operating costs for Fire & Rescue Services; and

WHEREAS, the Operating Budget for Fire & Rescue Services does not include the revenue or
appropriation for this grant program.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Manager of the City of Beloit is hereby
authorized to apply for said grants and to execute any other documents necessary to effectuate the
purpose of this resolution.

BE IT FUTHER RESOLVED that the 2016 General Fund Operating Budget for Fire & Rescue
Services be amended to permit the revenue and expenditure of funds from this grant program.

REVENUE Original Amended Difference
61666100-4393-35686 0 $2,000.00 +$2,000.00

EXPENDITURES Original Amended Difference
61666100-5343-35686 0 $2,000.00 +$2,000.00

Adopted this 21st day of November, 2016.

City Council of the City of Beloit

David F. Luebke, President
Attest:

Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING APPLICATION AND ACCEPTANCE OF A COMMUNITY GRANT FROM THE
WALMART FOUNDATION FOR “SHOP WITH A HERO” PROGRAM AND AMENDING THE 2016 GENERAL FUND
OPERATING BUDGET FOR THIS GRANT PROGRAM

Date: November 21, 2016

Presenter: Fire Chief Brad Liggett Department: Fire Department

Overview/Background Information:

The Fire Department has received non-competitive grants for 12 years from Wal-Mart in support of the “Shop with a Hero”
program. The grant is received just prior to the holiday season in order to provide opportunities for children in the community to
have a positive interaction with local firefighters in a non-enforcement situation. This year the City received $2,000.00.

Key Issues:

1. This is a non-competitive grant with no financial exposure to the City of Beloit.
2. This is a grant for the purpose of community engagement activities.
3. This is a jointly coordinated with other community partners like the Town of Beloit Police and Fire Departments and the

Madison Field Office of the FBI. This provides a broad opportunity for this positive interaction with the children and families in
our community.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):

Approval of this request would conform with the departments community engagement activities. Enhancing the lives of young
children through positive interaction with local firefighters is essential to our mission and values.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both the built and

natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently N/A

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space

Action required/Recommendation:
Staff recommends approval.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:
There is minimal impact to the operating budget for the department. The grant is awarded and cash value purchases are utilized
with the children for gifts of his/her choice for a maximum value of $35 per child. There is staff time required for administration of
the grant.

Attachments:
Resolution Supporting and Authorizing the Acceptance of the “Shop with a Hero” Grant.
Notice of Intent To Apply
Walmart Foundation – Community Grant Program Information



11/14/2016 Community Grant Guidelines

http://giving.walmart.com/apply-for-grants/local-giving-guidelines 1/3



11/14/2016 Community Grant Guidelines

http://giving.walmart.com/apply-for-grants/local-giving-guidelines 2/3



11/14/2016 Community Grant Guidelines

http://giving.walmart.com/apply-for-grants/local-giving-guidelines 3/3

Subscribe



11/14/2016 Community Grant FAQ

http://corporate.walmart.com/walmart-foundation/local-giving-faq 1/3



11/14/2016 Community Grant FAQ

http://corporate.walmart.com/walmart-foundation/local-giving-faq 2/3



11/14/2016 Community Grant FAQ

http://corporate.walmart.com/walmart-foundation/local-giving-faq 3/3



NOTICE OF INTENT TO APPLY FOR EXTERNAL FUNDING

DEPARTMENT: Fire Department
DATE: November 14, 2016
FUNDING SOURCE: Walmart Foundation
NAME OF GRANT: Community Grant Program
AMOUNT of PROPOSED GRANT: $2,000
LOCAL MATCH REQUIREMENTS: NONE
APPLICATION PERIOD: February 1 - December 31, 2016
AWARD DATE: No later than 11/30/2016
PERFORMANCE PERIOD: 1 Day – “Shop with the Hero”
MAINTENANCE OF EFFORT: NONE

The Walmart Foundation offers a Community Grant program that the Fire Department has utilized for
the last 12 years to fund our annual “Shop with the Hero” Program. There is no required match. The
department receives this cash value grant and utilizes the funds to help impoverished children shop for
Christmas. Kids have the ability to shop for themselves or use the money to shop for loved ones. Each
child will have the opportunity to shop with a Police Officer or Firefighter for a total value of $35 per
child. Police Officers and Firefighters support the program through donation of their time to shop with
the children. This program is a valuable outreach opportunity to connect children with these dedicated
public safety role models.

For more information please contact Fire Chief Brad Liggett at 608-364-2900 or examine the following

Website, http://giving.walmart.com/apply-for-grants/local-giving.



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING APPLICATION AND ACCEPTANCE OF A RISK REDUCTION GRANT
FROM CITIES AND VILLAGES MUTUAL INSURANCE COMPANY (CVMIC)

AND AMENDING THE 2016 GENERAL FUND OPERATING BUDGET

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit’s police and fire departments have been directed to reduce
risk by the City Manager through best practices policy development; and

WHEREAS, the Cities & Villages Mutual Insurance Company provides a risk reduction
grant program; and

WHEREAS, the Cities & Villages Mutual Insurance Company provides a broad range of
services to manage risk to the City of Beloit; and

WHEREAS, the Cities & Villages Mutual Insurance Company endorses the utilization of
Lexipol as a model program for best practices; and

WHEREAS, the Cities & Villages Mutual Insurance Company has committed to provide
$7,000 of matched grant funding for this project; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Manager of the City of Beloit is hereby
authorized to apply for said grant, to accept the grant, if awarded, and to execute any other
documents necessary to effectuate the purpose of this resolution.

BE IT FUTHER RESOLVED that the 2016 General Fund Operating Budget for Fire &
Rescue and Police Services be amended to permit the revenue and expenditure of funds from
this grant program.

REVENUE Original Amended Difference
61666100-4599-10295 0 $7,000.00 +$7,000.00

EXPENDITURES Original Amended Difference
61666100-5212-10295 0 $7,000.00 +$7,000.00

Adopted this 21st day of November, 2016.

City Council of the City of Beloit

David F. Luebke, President
Attest:

Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING APPLICATION AND ACCEPTANCE OF A RISK REDUCTION GRANT FROM THE
CITIES AND VILLAGES MUTUAL INSURANCE COMPANY AND AMENDING THE 2016 GENERAL FUND
OPERATING BUDGET

Date: November 21, 2016

Presenter: Chief David Zibolski & Fire Chief Brad Liggett Department: Police Department & Fire Department

Overview/Background Information:

The Police Department and Fire Department are subject to a significant amount of risk in the work and decisions that are required
to be made. The Cities & Villages Mutual Insurance Company (CVMIC) provides a broad spectrum of insurance and risk reduction
services to its member agencies. The City of Beloit is a charter member of CVMIC.
CVMIC supports a risk reduction program that trains employees on leadership, management, safety, and reducing risk through
training employees in the prevention of harassment and poor employment practices. CVMIC also offers a grant program to
member agencies for a reimbursement of up to $7,000 for participation in a risk-reduction program.
The City will use any awarded grant funds towards the Lexipol policy management system. CVMIC recommends and endorses the
program. This is the second consecutive year that the City will be utilizing the grant within the Police and Fire Departments.

Key Issues:

1. This is a non-competitive grant that requires a match of $7,000. The total package for the project is $15,055, $10,055 for the
police department and $4,995 for the fire department.

2. This program will provide model policies compliant with Wisconsin and Federal law, OSHA workplace safety, and national best
practices.

3. This will provide a training and accountability platform through Lexipol’s Knowledge Management System and Supplemental
Publication Service for all department personnel review new and updated policies.

4. Policies are updated automatically by Lexipol which creates an administrative and project management efficiency for both
departments’ administrative teams.

5. The system will provide the City with a national best practices model which includes 150 policies for the police department and
165 policies for the fire department.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):

1. As an eco-municipality, focus on the sustainable stewardship of City resources, services and infrastructure; to protect both our
built and natural environment and enhance the quality of life for current and future generations.
3. Proactively partner with individuals and businesses to promote a safe and healthy community, minimize personal injury, prevent
loss of life and protect property and natural resources.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both the built and
natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently N/A

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space

Action required/Recommendation:
Staff recommends approval.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:
The required minimum match is $7,000. Total net cost to the City will be $8,050. Funding is available in the current budget.

Attachments:
Resolution Supporting and Authorizing the Acceptance of the CVMIC Grant, Notice of Intent To Apply
CVMIC Grant Information, Lexipol Information



CVMIC Risk Reduction Grant Program

Purpose
The CVMIC Risk Reduction Grant Program is designed to offer our membership a method for obtaining equipment, services, and

training materials to assist them with the reduction of injuries and loss potential. Target areas for risk reduction include

workers’ comp, general liability, employment practices liability, and auto liability, but additional areas of liability may be

considered. The intention is to create a process that is simple to access for our members and manageable for CVMIC staff. The

primary goal is to remove financial barriers for our members and collectively reduce the risk exposure for the membership

Structure
A Grant Request form will be available on the CVMIC website ( www.cvmic.com ) for the members to complete. This form will

be submitted and reviewed by CVMIC staff to determine if the criteria for a valid submission have been met. Approved items

will be reimbursed at 50% of the cost up to the allotted dollars available (see allotments) which is determined by member size:

Large, Medium, or Small. Reimbursement will require payment verification and CVMIC review.

Members are required to designate a Program Coordinator that manages all requests for the city/village to best serve the

overall needs of the municipality. CVMIC suggests that the member representative be the coordinator for the grant program.

Multiple submissions are allowed up to the allotted dollar amount per member. If you identify a category that is not currently

covered by the grant program please contact CVMIC to discuss the possibility of adding a new category.

Allotments
Member Size Amount allotted Frequency Member count Total/year

Large $10,000 Per Calendar year 7 $70,000

Medium $7,000 Per Calendar year 16 $112,000

Small $5,000 Per Calendar year 23 $115,000

Total $297,000

*CVMIC and the program coordinator will be responsible for managing the cumulative expenditures for each member.

Scheduled Dates
Grant request forms must be submitted by the program coordinator to CVMIC. Requests can be submitted and approved up to

the deadline of September 1st. Receipts for purchased items will be accumulated and payments made when either the allotted

dollar amount has been used or the payment verification deadline of December 1
st

has been reached. The intention is for

CVMIC to cut a check once during the calendar year. Grant money availability is reset on January 1
st

of each calendar year and

grant money that has not been used by the end of the calendar year is forfeited and not carried over.

Contact Information
For questions please email Pallin at pea@cvmic.com. Thank you.



CITY OF BELOIT POLICE AND FIRE
DEPARTMENTS

NOTICE OF INTENT TO APPLY FOR EXTERNAL FUNDING

DEPARTMENT: Fire Department & Police Department
DATE: November 14, 2016
FUNDING SOURCE: Cities & Villages Mutual Insurance Company (CVMIC)
NAME OF GRANT: CVMIC Risk Reduction Grant Program
AMOUNT of PROPOSED GRANT: $7,000
LOCAL MATCH REQUIREMENTS: $7,000
APPLICATION PERIOD: September 1 - December 1, 2016
AWARD DATE: No later than 12/1/2016
PERFORMANCE PERIOD: 2017
MAINTENANCE OF EFFORT: NONE

The Cities & Villages Mutual Insurance Company (CVMIC) Risk Reduction Grant Program is designed to
offer CVMIC members a method for obtaining equipment, services, and training materials to assist them
with the reduction of injuries and loss potential. Target areas for risk reduction include workers’
compensation, general liability, employment practices liability, and auto liability, but additional areas of
liability may be considered. The primary goal of the program is to remove financial barriers for CVMIC
members and to collectively reduce the risk exposure for CVMIC.

The Beloit Police & Fire Departments will be utilizing grant funds by implement a policy and training
management program known as Lexipol. Lexipol is a provider of risk management policies and
resources for organizations, delivering services through a unique, web-based development system.
Lexipol offers state-specific policy manuals that are integrated with scenario-based daily training on
high-risk, low-frequency events. This company was recommended and endorsed by CVMIC. Total cost
of the project in the first year is $15,050.00. $10,055.00 for the Police Department and $4,995.00 for the
Fire Department.

For more information please contact Fire Chief Brad Liggett at 608-364-2900.


	Monday, November 21, 2016
	1.	CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
	2.	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	3.	SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS
	a.	Proclamation recognizing City of Beloit Election Inspectors for 2016  (Stottler)

	4.	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	5.	CITIZEN PARTICIPATION
	6.	CONSENT AGENDA
	a.	Approval of the Minutes of the Regular meeting of November 7, 2016 (Stottler)
	b. Resolution approving a new application for Class “B” Beer and “Class B” Liquor License of Game On Bar and Grill, LLC, d/b/a Game on Bar and Grill, located at, 443 East Grand Avenue, Joseph A Jensen Agent, for the licensing period ending June 30, 2017  (Stottler)  ABLCC recommendation for approval 4-0
	c. Resolution approving Change of Agent on the Class “A” Beer and Class ”A” Cider Only license for Speedway LLC owned by MPC Investment LLC, d/b/a Speedway #4293, 2781 Milwaukee Road to Jane M. Erbe for the licensing period ending June 30, 2017  (Stottler) ABLCC recommendation for approval 5-0
	d. Resolution approving a Final Subdivision Plat of Eagles Ridge Plat No. 2 for properties located at 1710  & 1725 Raven Court  (Christensen)  Plan Commission recommendation for approval 6-0
	e.	Application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow Other Entertainment-Oriented Retail for the purposes of a banquet hall facility, in a C-2 Neighborhood Commercial District for property located at 1703 Park Avenue in the City of Beloit  (Christensen)  Refer to Plan Commission
	f.	Application for a Zoning Map Amendment to change the Zoning District Classification of the properties located at 631, 640, 654 & 657 Bluff Street, from R-1B, Single-Family Residential District to C-1, Office District (Christensen)  Refer to Plan Commission

	7.	ORDINANCES
	8.	APPOINTMENTS
	10.	CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION
	11.	REPORTS FROM BOARDS AND CITY OFFICERS
	a. Resolution authorizing Application and Acceptance of a Community Grant from the Walmart Foundation for “Shop with a Hero” Program and Amending the 2016 General Fund Operating Budget (Liggett)
	b. Resolution authorizing Application and Acceptance of a Risk Reduction Grant from Cities and Villages Mutual Insurance Company (CVMIC) and Amending the 2016 General Fund Operating Budget (Liggett)
	c.  The City Council may adjourn into closed session pursuant to Wis. Stats. 19.85 (1)(e) to discuss potential real estate transaction, the discussion of which would harm the City's competitive or bargaining interests if held in open session, namely the potential transfer of Outlot #1 of Walnut Grove Plat No. 2 (2278 Winchester Drive) to the City of Beloit (Krueger/Christensen)
	d.  Council may reconvene in open session and possibly take action on the matter discussed in closed session

	12.	ADJOURNMENT

